
City of Glendale 
Commission on Persons with Disabilities 

Regular Meeting 
 

MINUTES 
 

Main Library, 1st Floor Meeting Room 
5959 West Brown Street, Glendale, Arizona 85302 

Tuesday, June 18, 2013 
6:00pm 

 
I. Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Hirsch at approximately 6:00pm. 
 

II. Roll Call 
Chairperson Hirsch, Vice Chairperson Fallucca, and Commissioners Marshall 
(arrived at 6:05pm), Lesser and Kumar were present.  Commissioner Hoerner was 
absent and excused.  Staff in attendance was Lori Bye, Parks and Recreation, Erik 
Strunk, Executive Director, Stuart Kent, Public Works Executive Director, Mike 
Gregory, Parks, and Diana Figueroa, Recording Secretary. 
 
Chairperson Hirsch asked if the issue of excused and unexcused absences could be 
discussed.  Mr. Strunk suggested the issue be placed on a future agenda for 
discussion. 
 

III. Approval of Minutes – May 21, 2013 
Chairperson Hirsch asked for revisions to the minutes of May 21, 2013. 
 
Commissioner Hoerner had emailed asking that his vote show as “abstain” on page 3 
of the minutes.  There was a brief discussion as to whether he was able to abstain or if 
he needed to vote in favor of or against for that particular item.  Ms. Bye will look 
into this issue and correct the minutes. 
 
Chairperson Hirsch asked that Vice Chairperson Fallucca’s absence be noted in the 
minutes as well as a period at the end of the second paragraph under section V. 
 
Commissioner Kumar made a motion to approve the meeting minutes with revisions 
suggested by Chairperson Hirsch.  Commissioner Lesser seconded the motion.  The 
minutes were approved unanimously. 

 
IV. Business from the Floor 

Chairperson Hirsch called for Business from the Floor.  There was none. 
 

V. Placement of Residential Refuse and Recycling Containers 
Chairperson Hirsch asked for staff’s presentation on this item. 
 



Commissioner on Persons with Disabilities 
Page 2 

Mr. Strunk introduced Stuart Kent, Public Works Executive Director, who provided a 
brief summary of the issue of the placement of residential refuse and recycling 
containers to the Commission. 
 
He reviewed the proposal, which will be brought before City Council for final 
decision.  He also announced that any changes made to the City Code would need to 
be advertised to inform the public.  Mr. Kent also shared some of the methods the city 
uses to notify the City of Glendale residents.  In the past, the city has used door 
hangers, as well as advertising in The Glendale Star and the Arizona Republic and 
publishing in Glendale Green.  Mr. Kent estimated it would take six to 12 months to 
educate the community on the approved changes. 
 
Commissioner Kumar suggested advertising in the city utility bill. 
 
With no further questions or comments, Chairperson Hirsch called for a motion. 
 
Commissioner Lesser made a motion instructing staff to proceed with the proposal.  
Commissioner Kumar seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 
 

VI. Elsie McCarthy Sensory Garden 
Chairperson Hirsch asked for staff’s presentation on this item. 
 
Ms. Bye introduced Mr. Mike Gregory.  Mr. Gregory presented a PowerPoint 
presentation of the Sensory Garden and described the features at the Garden.  
 
Commissioner Kumar asked what vandalism has taken place at the park.  Mr. 
Gregory explained that the pump systems to the fountain were damaged.  Rocks, 
which are part of the features, have been used as projectiles into the nearby homes. 
 
Vice Chairperson Fallucca said the inside of the park was hidden by the mature and 
lush landscaping.  He asked if it could be thinned or cleared so that the police officers 
on patrol would be able to see into the park.  Mr. Gregory stated the Parks 
Department has removed some of the mature vegetation.  This helped lessen the 
public safety concern. 
 
He continued with another feature and explained that the feature included clear 
pyramids in the concrete. Vandals broke the concrete and stole the pyramids. Parks 
staff replaced each pyramid as it was destroyed.  Mr. Gregory said eventually 
replacing the pyramids became too costly.  
 
He said vandalism, an unsupervised facility, aging structures, appearance, funding – 
endowment, were all concerns regarding the Sensory Garden. 
 
Mr. Gregory said there are opportunities for assistance such as Partners ‘n Parks, 
donations, and in-kind services.  Mr. Gregory asked if the garden should be restored 
or if the features should be replaced making them as “vandal proof” as possible. 
 



Commissioner on Persons with Disabilities 
Page 3 

He displayed pictures of themed parks and suggested the garden could be modernized 
into a theme park. 
 
Chairperson Hirsch asked the Commission for any suggestions or ideas. 
 
Commissioner Lesser asked how any repairs or replacements would be funded.  Mr. 
Gregory said repairs could be made through the endowment, city employees, 
corporate funding, and possibly in-kind donations, as well as volunteers. 
 
Mr. Gregory noted funding might be available through CPTED, Crime Prevention 
Through Environmental Design or other crime prevention grants. 
  
Commissioner Kumar suggested replacing the fountain with a multi-level planter. 
 
Vice Chairperson Fallucca asked if the students from the Phoenix School for the Deaf 
or the Phoenix School for the Blind have been contacted for their input.  Mr. Gregory 
was unsure, but noted that was an excellent suggestion. 
 
Mr. Gregory read the endowment restrictions for the Commission regarding what the 
funds could be used for at the Garden. 
 
Commissioner Marshall suggested plants that attract hummingbirds or butterflies.  
She also suggested a herb garden be included.  Some of the herbs are very fragrant.  
Commissioner Marshall said some type of chimes or bird chirps could be added. 
 
Vice Chairperson Fallucca stated he would like to lead a fundraising activity.  Mr. 
Gregory suggested he contact Ms. Bye for the rules and regulations on fundraising. 
 
The Commission had many suggestions and ideas; it was decided a workshop was 
needed to discuss the Sensory Garden repairs and restoration. 
 
Ms. Bye said other items such as the work plan could also be discussed at the 
workshop. 
 
The Commission thanked Mr. Gregory for his informative presentation. 
 

VII. Staff Updates 
Ms. Bye said a new Commissioner has been appointed to the Commission, Mr. Mark 
Mander. 
 
Ms. Bye stated she has reviewed the Work Plan and has been provided to the 
Commission for review.  She also said the Monthly Report of the Parks Department 
for the month of June has been included.  This allows the Commission the 
opportunity to see what the Parks Department is doing for the citizens.  Last, the 
Boards and Commissions Procedures were distributed to the Commission.   
 
Chairperson Hirsch said she felt the Sensory Garden should be the only item 
discussed at a workshop. 



Commissioner on Persons with Disabilities 
Page 4 

 
VIII. Commission Comments and Suggestions 

The Commission agreed to vacate the July meeting and hold a workshop.  A tentative 
date was selected - Saturday, July 13th from 8 to noon. 
 
Commissioner Marshall announced she will be moving outside of the Glendale city 
limits and has resigned.  She said she has informed Council Member Knaack.  She 
hopes to continue to be involved in the Sensory Park renovation. 
 

IX. Adjournment 
With no further business, Commissioner Lesser motioned to adjourn the meeting.  
Commissioner Kumar seconded the motion, which was approved unanimously.  The 
meeting adjourned at 7:54pm. 


	I. Call to Order
	V. Placement of Residential Refuse and Recycling Containers
	VI. Elsie McCarthy Sensory Garden
	VII. Staff Updates
	IX. Adjournment


